
 
  

CITY OF LAWNDALE 
14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, California 90260 

Phone (310) 973-3200 – www.lawndalecity.org 
 

AGENDA 
LAWNDALE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

Monday, October 19, 2020 - 6:30 p.m. 
Lawndale City Hall Council Chamber 

14717 Burin Avenue 
 

* COVID-19 NOTICE * 
Consistent with Executive Orders from the Executive Department of the State of California and 
the Los Angeles County Health Official’s “Safer at Home” Order, this City Council meeting will 
not be physically open to the public as City Councilmembers will be teleconferencing into the 
meeting via Webex Communications. 
 
How to observe the Meeting:  
To maximize public safety while still maintaining transparency and public access, members of the public 
can observe the meeting on YouTube “Lawndale CityTV”, the City Website, or Lawndale Community 
Cable Television on Spectrum & Frontier Channel 3. 
 
How to submit Public Comment:  
Members of the public may provide public comment by sending comments to the Clerk by email at 
cityclerk@lawndalecity.org.  Please submit your written comments as early as possible, preferably prior 
to the start of the meeting or if you are unable to email, please call the City Clerk's Office at (310) 973-
3213 by 5:30 p.m. on the date of the meeting. Email comments must identify the Agenda Item Number 
in the subject line of the email.  The public comment period will close once the public comment time for 
the agenda item has concluded. The comments will be entered into the record and provided to the 
Council. All comments should be a maximum of 500 words, which corresponds to approximately 3 
minutes of speaking time.  Please see the Temporary eComment Policy for Public Meetings. 
 
Copies of this Agenda packet may be obtained prior to the meeting outside of the Lawndale City Hall foyer 
or on the City Website.  Interested parties may contact the City Clerk Department at (310) 973-3213 for 
clarification regarding individual agenda items. 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 
B. CEREMONIALS (Flag Salute and Inspiration) 

 
C. PRESENTATION 
 

1. Senator Bradford’s Office – Legislative Update  
 

D. PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT 
 

E. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA (Public Comments) 
 

F. COMMENTS FROM COUNCIL 
 

G. CONSENT CALENDAR 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCfzabQru02YprD2xs5FC2Ow
http://192.168.10.14/CablecastPublicSite/watch/1?channel=3
mailto:cityclerk@lawndalecity.org
http://www.lawndalecity.org/ASSETS/PDF/Corona/City%20of%20Lawndale%20-%20eComment%20Policy.pdf
http://www.lawndalecity.org/HTML/DEPTHTML/CCLERK/CCAgendasMinutes.htm


Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
October 19, 2020 
Page 2 
 
 

 

 
Items 1 through 8, will be considered and acted upon under one motion unless a City Councilmember 
removes individual items for further City Council consideration or explanation. 

 
2. Motion to read by title only and waive further reading of all ordinances listed on the  

Agenda 
Recommendation: that the City Council approve. 

 
3. Amending Title 17 of the Lawndale Municipal Code pertaining to the Development  

Standards for Accessory Dwelling Units to reflect recent changes in State Law 
Recommendation: that the City Council approve the second reading and adopt Ordinance 
No. 1177-20, amending Title 17 of the Lawndale Municipal Code pertaining to the 
Development Standards for Accessory Dwelling Units to reflect recent changes in State 
Law. 

 
4. Continuation of Emergency Condition and Approving Repairs without Notice for  

Bids for the Harold E. Hofmann Community Center 
Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution No. CC-2010-058 extending  
the emergency condition established on October 5, 2020 with the approval of Resolution 
No. CC-2010-056 . 

 
5. Consideration of Claim Against the City 

Recommendation: that the City Council reject the claim filed by Esaul Rosales and 
instruct staff to process the appropriate correspondence to the claimant. 

 
6. First Quarter Investment Report 

Recommendation: that the City Council receive and file the Quarterly Investment 
Report for the quarter ended September 30, 2020. 
 

7. Accounts Payable Register 
Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution No. CC-2010-057, authorizing 
the payment of certain claims and demands in the amount of $153,702.36. 

 
8. Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Regular Meeting – October 5, 2020 

Recommendation: that the City Council approve. 
 

H. ADMINISTRATION 
 
9. Regional Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA)Allocation Appeal 

Recommendation: that the City Council direct staff to file an appeal with the Southern 
California Association of Government (SCAG) regarding the Regional Housing Needs 
Assessment (RHNA) challenging the City’s housing allocation of 2,491 units.   

 
10. Award Construction Contract to Sequel Contractors Inc., for the Fiscal Year  

2019-2020 Annual Street Improvement Project No. 2020-5 and 2020-6 
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) award the construction contract to Sequel 
Contractors Inc. in the amount of $1,276,820.00 and (b) approve a fifteen percent (15%) 



Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
October 19, 2020 
Page 3 
 
 

 

contingency in the amount of $190,173.00 to cover an unforeseen field conditions and to 
avoid project delays and facilitate timely project completion. 

 
11. Budget Update for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020 

Recommendation: that the City Council approve the budget adjustments as contained in 
the Budget Update for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020. 
 

I. CITY MANAGER'S REPORT 
 
12. Cancelation of Upcoming City Council Meetings 

Recommendation: that the City Council cancel the following City Council meetings: 
Monday, November 16, 2020; Monday, December 21, 2020; and Monday, January 4, 
2021. 

 
J. ITEMS FROM CITY COUNCILMEMBERS 
 

13. Mayor/City Councilmembers Report of Attendance at Meetings and/or Events 
 

K. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The next regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council will be held at 6:30 p.m. on Monday, 
November 2, 2020 in the Lawndale City Hall council chamber, 14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, 
California. 
 

It is the intention of the City of Lawndale to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) in 
all respects.  If, as an attendee or a participant at this meeting, you will need special assistance beyond 
what is normally provided, we will attempt to accommodate you in every reasonable manner.  Please 
contact the City Clerk Department (310) 973-3213 prior to the meeting to inform us of your particular 
needs and to determine if accommodation is feasible.  Please advise us at that time if you will need 
accommodations to attend or participate in meetings on a regular basis. 
 

I hereby certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the Agenda 
for the regular meeting of the City Council to be held on October 19, 2020 was posted not less 
than 72 hours prior to the meeting. 

 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Matthew Ceballos, Assistant City Clerk 



1



Senator Steven Bradford, 35th District 
2020 Legislative Accomplishments 

Page 1 of 2 

2020 Legislative Accomplishments 
Please note: due to COVID-19, the Senator consolidated his legislative package to focus on 
measures addressing the pandemic, the state’s economic recovery, and other urgent issues. All of 
the bills listed below were enacted by the Legislature this year and were signed into law by the 
Governor.  

Pandemic Response & Recovery 

 SB 1447: Small Business Hiring Tax Credit
Creates a new $100 million small business hiring tax credit program, expanding
California’s assistance programs for small businesses during the COVID-19 pandemic.
Eligible businesses can reserve this credit beginning December 1, 2020, with the California
Department of Tax & Fee Administration.
Statutes of 2020, Chapter 41.

 AB 3088 : (Joint Author) Tenant/Landlord COVID-19 Eviction & Foreclosure Relief
Protects tenants and small landlords struggling due to COVID-19 by providing eviction
relief and foreclosure protection. For more information, see HousingisKey.com.
Statutes of 2020, Chapter 37.

Banking and Financial Institutions 

 SB 1157: Credit Reporting for Lower-Income Households
A first-in-the-nation requirement that owners of medium and large multifamily, subsidized
rental properties must offer their tenants optional reporting of rental payments to assist in
building credit scores.
Statutes of 2020, Chapter 204.

Public Safety & Criminal Justice Reform 

 SB 203: Interrogation of Children
Requires children, up to age 17, to consult with legal counsel prior to custodial
interrogation and before waiving their Miranda rights.
Statutes of 2020, Chapter 335.

Consumer Safety 

 SB 1244: Cannabis Testing & Consumer Safety
Authorizes state and local law enforcement, regulatory, and prosecutorial agencies to have
cannabis tested at a licensed facility to ensure it is safe for consumers and complies with
existing regulations.
Statutes of 2020, Chapter 309.



Senator Steven Bradford, 35th District 
2020 Legislative Accomplishments 

Page 2 of 2 

 SB 1192: Benefit and Relief Associations
Creates important consumer protections for members of police, peace officer, and
firefighter benefit associations that offer long-term disability or care benefits by enhancing
transparency between these associations and the Department of Insurance.
Statutes of 2020, Chapter 365.

Resolutions: 

 SR 67: Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Day
Honors the late reverend Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr., and commemorates Dr. Martin Luther
King, Jr., Day.

 SR 74: Black History Month
Recognizes February as Black History Month and celebrates the accomplishments of
African Americans, while encouraging Californians to recognize the many talents of
African Americans and the achievements and contributions they have made in our country.

 SCR 31: The Willie L. Brown, Jr. Circle and Plaza
Names the public street, circle, and plaza at 914 and 915 Capitol Mall as the Willie L.
Brown, Jr. Circle and Plaza in recognition of the historical significance of Willie Brown as
a former Speaker of the California Assembly and Mayor of San Francisco.

### 

Senator Bradford is the chair of the Senate Banking & Financial Institutions Committee, vice-
chair of the California Legislative Black Caucus, and represents the Los Angeles County 
communities of Carson, Compton, Gardena, Harbor City, Hawthorne, Inglewood, Lawndale, 
Lennox, San Pedro, Torrance, Watts, Willowbrook, and Wilmington.  

More information about Senator Bradford and his legislation can be found at 
www.senate.ca.gov/Bradford  



2



3





Ordinance No. 1177-20 
Updating LMC Title 17 related to Accessory Dwelling Units 

ORDINANCE NO. 1177-20 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA AMENDING CERTAIN SECTIONS IN 
TITLE 17, ZONING, OF THE LAWNDALE MUNICIPAL CODE 
REGARDING ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS AND FINDING 
OF EXEMPTION FROM CEQA 

 
SUMMARY:  This ordinance amends the regulations in the City’s Zoning Code for 
accessory dwelling units and junior accessory dwelling units consistent with current state 
law. 

 
 WHEREAS, in light of the statewide shortage of housing, the State laws on accessory dwelling 
units have been repeatedly expanded to give property owners more latitude to add new housing units; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Governor of the State of California signed approximately 20 housing bills in 
October of 2019 including Assembly Bill 68 (AB 68), Assembly Bill 881 (AB 881), and Senate Bill 13 
(SB 13) (collectively, the “Bills”), each of which became effective on January 1, 2020, to, among other 
things, make certain clarifying changes state laws related to Accessory Dwelling Units (“ADUs”) and 
Junior Accessory Dwelling Units (“JADUs”); and 
 

WHEREAS, on January 6, 2020 the City Council for the City of Lawndale adopted Urgency 
Ordinance No. 1168-20 to update the City’s codes in an effort to comply with the new laws; and  

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council now desires to revise the City’s Zoning Code regarding ADUs 
JADUs to make the City’s code more user friendly and compliant with the Bills; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission considered this ordinance at a properly noticed public 
hearing on September 23, 2020 and recommended adoption by the City Council; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council, after notice duly given as required by law, held a public hearing 
on October 5, 2020 in the City Hall council chamber located at 14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, 
California, to consider this matter. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA, 
DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1. The City Council of the City of Lawndale hereby makes the following findings: 
 

A. The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated fully herein. 
B. The changes to the Zoning Code of the City of Lawndale made by this Ordinance are 

consistent with the General Plan of the City of Lawndale. 
 
 SECTION 2. The definition of “accessory dwelling unit” set forth in Section 17.08.020 of the 
Lawndale Municipal Code is amended to read, in its entirety, as follows: 
 



 
 
Ordinance No. 1177-20 
Updating LMC Title 17 related to Accessory Dwelling Units 2 

““Accessory dwelling unit” or “ADU” means an attached or a detached residential dwelling unit 
which provides complete independent living facilities for one or more persons and is located on 
a lot with a proposed or existing primary residence. It shall include permanent provisions for 
living, sleeping, eating, cooking, and sanitation and shall be constructed on the same parcel as 
the single-family or multifamily dwelling unit that is the primary dwelling unit is or will be 
situated. An accessory dwelling unit also includes the following: (a) an efficiency unit, as defined 
in Section 17958.1 of the Health & Safety Code, and (b) a manufactured home, as defined in 
Section 18007 of the Health & Safety Code.  This definition shall be interpreted as consistent 
with and including the definition of accessory dwelling unit found in Government Code Section 
65852.2.” 
 
SECTION 3. Section 17.08.020 of the Lawndale Municipal Code is amended to add the 

following definitions in their respective alphabetical order: 
 
“Existing structure” for the purposes of defining an allowable space that can be converted to an 
accessory dwelling unit means within the footprint of any structure existing on or after the 
effective date of this section that can be made safely habitable under local building codes at the 
determination of the building official regardless of any non-compliance with zoning standards. 
 
“Junior accessory dwelling unit” or “JADU” means a unit that is no more than 500 square feet in 
size which is contained entirely within a single-family residence. A junior accessory dwelling 
unit may include separate sanitation facilities, or may share sanitation facilities with the existing 
structure. This definition shall be interpreted as consistent with and including the definition of 
junior accessory dwelling unit found in Government Code Section 65852.22. 
 
“Living area” means the interior habitable area of a dwelling unit, including basements and attics, 
but does not include a garage or any accessory structure.  This definition shall be interpreted as 
consistent with and including the definition of living area found in Government Code Section 
65852.2. 
 
“Passageway” means a pathway that is unobstructed clear to the sky and extends from a street to 
one entrance of the accessory dwelling unit.  This definition shall be interpreted as consistent 
with and including the definition of passageway found in Government Code Section 65852.2. 
 
“Proposed dwelling” means a dwelling that is the subject of a permit application and that meets 
the requirements for permitting.  This definition shall be interpreted as consistent with and 
including the definition of proposed dwelling found in Government Code Section 65852.2. 
 
“Public transit,” for the purpose of Section 17.48.056 only, means a location, including, but not 
limited to, a bus stop or train station, where the public may access buses, trains, subways, and 
other forms of transportation that charge set fares, run on fixed routes, and are available to the 
public.  This definition shall be interpreted as consistent with and including the definition of 
public transit found in Government Code Section 65852.2.” 
 

 
SECTION 4. Section 17.48.056 of the Lawndale Municipal Code is amended to read, in its 

entirety, as follows: 
 



 
 
Ordinance No. 1177-20 
Updating LMC Title 17 related to Accessory Dwelling Units 3 

“17.48.056 Accessory dwelling units  
 
A. Permit Requirements.  Accessory dwelling units will be permitted ministerially, subject to 
compliance with the regulations for the applicable zone, in areas zoned to allow single-family or 
multifamily residential use within 60 days of a complete application if there is an existing single-
family or multifamily dwelling on the lot, in accordance with state law, including but not limited 
to Government Code Sections 65852.2 and 65852.22. If the permit application to create an 
accessory dwelling unit is submitted with a permit application to create a new single-family 
dwelling on the lot, the City may delay acting on the permit application for the accessory 
dwelling unit or the junior accessory dwelling unit until it acts on the permit application to create 
the new single-family dwelling, but in such event the application to create the accessory dwelling 
unit or junior accessory dwelling unit will be considered without discretionary review or hearing.  
Accessory dwelling units do not exceed the allowable density for the lot upon which the 
accessory dwelling unit is located and will be considered a residential use that is consistent with 
the existing general plan and zoning designation for the lot. 
 
B.  Fees 

1. An accessory dwelling unit will not be considered to be a new residential use for purposes 
of calculating connection fees or capacity charges for utilities, including water and sewer 
service, unless the accessory dwelling unit was constructed with a new single-family 
dwelling. 
2.  No impact fees will be imposed upon the development of an accessory dwelling unit less 
than 750 square feet. Any impact fees charged for an accessory dwelling unit of 750 square 
feet or more shall be charged proportionately in relation to the square footage of the primary 
dwelling unit.  “Impact fee” does not include any connection fee or capacity charge charged 
by the city.  
3. For an accessory dwelling unit on a lot with a proposed or existing single-family dwelling, 
the City will not require the installation of a new or separate utility connection directly 
between the accessory dwelling unit and the utility or impose a related connection fee or 
capacity charge, unless the accessory dwelling unit was constructed with a new single-family 
home. 
4. For an accessory dwelling unit that is described in Section 17.48.056(D), new or separate 
utility connections directly between the accessory dwelling unit and the utility are required, 
unless the proposed ADU will be located within an existing structure. Consistent with 
Government Code Section 66013, the connection may be subject to a connection fee or 
capacity charge that is proportionate to the burden of the proposed accessory dwelling unit, 
based upon either its square feet or the number of its drainage fixture unit (DFU) values, as 
defined in the Uniform Plumbing Code adopted and published by the International 
Association of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials, upon the water or sewer system. This fee 
will not exceed the reasonable cost of providing this service. 

 
C.  Accessory dwelling units on a lot zoned for single-family or multifamily use that is either 
attached or detached from the primary structure must comply with the following requirements: 



 
 
Ordinance No. 1177-20 
Updating LMC Title 17 related to Accessory Dwelling Units 4 

1. The lot on which an accessory dwelling unit is located must be one in which residential uses 
are permitted and contain an existing or proposed single-family  or multifamily dwelling. 

2.  The accessory dwelling unit will be located on the same lot as the proposed or existing 
primary dwelling and either (i) attached to, (ii) located within the proposed or existing 
primary dwelling, including attached garages, storage areas or similar uses, (iii) within an 
accessory structure, or (iv) detached from the proposed or existing primary dwelling. 

 
3.  No more than one accessory dwelling unit is permitted, except as allowed by Subsection D 

of this Section. 
 
4.  The total area of floor space of an attached accessory dwelling unit shall not exceed either: 

i) 50 percent of the existing primary dwelling living area, but in no case shall said 
requirement prohibit an 800 square foot accessory dwelling unit or ii) 850 square feet for 
a unit with one bedroom or iii) 1,000 square feet for an accessory dwelling unit that 
provides more than one bedroom.  

 
5.  The total area of floor space of a detached accessory dwelling unit shall not exceed 1,000 

square feet for an accessory dwelling unit that provides more than one bedroom. 
 
6.  Accessory dwelling units shall comply, without limitation, with all applicable building and 

safety codes as adopted by Title 15 of the Lawndale Municipal Code. 
 
7.  No passageway shall be required in conjunction with the construction of an accessory 

dwelling unit. 
 
8.  No setback shall be required for an ADU constructed within an existing living area or 

accessory structure or a structure constructed in the same location and to the same 
dimensions as an existing structure that is converted to an ADU or to a portion of an ADU. 
However, a setback of four feet from the side and rear lot lines shall be required for both 
an accessory dwelling unit that is not converted from an existing structure and any new 
structure constructed in the same location and to the same dimensions as an existing 
structure.  

 
9. The ADU shall comply with the lot coverage and open space requirements of the zone in 

which the parcel is located, except that application of this standard shall not preclude the 
construction of an ADU of at least 800 square feet with four-foot side and rear yard 
setbacks, in compliance with all other local development standards.   

 
10.  An ADU will not be required to provide fire sprinklers if they are not required for the 

primary residence.  
 



 
 
Ordinance No. 1177-20 
Updating LMC Title 17 related to Accessory Dwelling Units 5 

11.  The accessory dwelling unit shall be architecturally compatible and designed such that it 
matches with the design of the primary dwelling unit in terms of exterior treatment, 
landscaping, and architecture, including but not limited to roofing pitch, roofing materials, 
and paint color. 

 
12.  The maximum height of an accessory dwelling unit shall be 16 feet in height. 
 
13.  Parking requirements for accessory dwelling units shall be one parking space per accessory 

dwelling unit. These parking spaces may be provided as tandem parking, including on a 
driveway or in setback areas, excluding the non-driveway front yard setback. No parking 
shall be required for an accessory dwelling unit in any of the following circumstances: 

a. The accessory dwelling unit is located within one-half mile walking distance of public 
transit. 
b. The accessory dwelling unit is located within an architecturally and historically 
significant historic district.  
c. The accessory dwelling unit is part of the proposed or existing primary residence or an 
accessory structure. 
d. On-street parking permits are required but not offered to the occupant of the accessory 
dwelling unit. 
e. There is a car share vehicle located within one block of the accessory dwelling unit. 

 
14. When a garage, carport, or covered parking structure is demolished in conjunction with the 
construction of an accessory dwelling unit or converted to an accessory dwelling unit, the City 
will not require that those off-street parking spaces be replaced. 
 
15.  Other than as set forth in subsection (A)(14) above, nothing in this section shall prohibit the 
City from enforcing the parking requirements for the existing single-family residence or multi-
family residence on the same parcel as the ADU, in a manner consistent with state law. 
 
16.  Before permit issuance, the City shall be provided with a copy of the recorded deed 
restriction, which shall run with the land, using the City’s form, memorializing the following: (a) 
starting January 1, 2026, either the primary residence or the accessory dwelling unit must be 
owner-occupied at all times as required by State law; (b)  the accessory dwelling unit shall not 
be sold or owned separately from the primary residence, and the property shall not be subdivided 
in any manner which would authorize such separate sale or ownership; (c) neither the primary 
residence nor the accessory dwelling unit on the property may be rented for a period of less than 
30 days; and (d) the accessory dwelling unit may not exceed the size and attributes described in 
the deed restriction. This section shall comply with any future amendments to state law.     

 



 
 
Ordinance No. 1177-20 
Updating LMC Title 17 related to Accessory Dwelling Units 6 

17.  Building Separation: An accessory dwelling unit shall comply with the building 
separation requirements of the underlying zone including the 20 foot building separation 
requirement in the Single Family Residential (R-1) zone, but in no case shall said 
requirement prohibit an accessory dwelling unit that is a minimum of 800 square feet, 
maximum of 16 feet in height with four-foot side and rear yard setbacks. 

 
18.  Landscaping: All setback areas shall be landscaped as required by Section 17.44.015 
of this code. 

 
D.  Notwithstanding any other requirements of this Title 17, the City will ministerially approve 
an application for a building permit within a residential or mixed-use zone to create any of the 
following: 
 

a. One ADU per lot with a proposed or existing single-family dwelling if all of the following 
apply: 

i. The ADU or JADU is within the proposed space of a single-family dwelling or existing 
space of a single-family dwelling or accessory structure and not more than 150 square 
feet beyond the same physical dimensions of the existing accessory structure if 
necessary to accommodate ingress and egress. 

ii.  The space has exterior access separate from the proposed or existing single-family 
dwelling. 

iii.  The side and rear setbacks are sufficient for fire and safety. 
iv. The JADU complies with the requirements in Section 17.48.057.  
 

b.  One detached, new construction, ADU per lot that does not exceed four-foot side and rear 
yard setbacks for a lot with a proposed or existing single-family dwelling. The ADU may be 
combined with a JADU described above in Section 17.48.056(D)(1). The following 
limitations shall apply to the ADU: 
 

i.  A total floor area limitation of 800 square feet. 
ii.  A height limitation of 16 feet. 
 

c. Multiple ADUs within the portions of existing multifamily dwelling structures that are not 
used as livable space, including, but not limited to, storage rooms, boiler rooms, passageways, 
attics, basements, or garages, if each unit complies with state building standards for 
dwellings. The City will allow at least one ADU and up to 25 percent of the existing number 
of multifamily dwelling units. 
 
d.  Not more than two ADUs that are located on a lot that has an existing multifamily 
dwelling, but are detached from that multifamily dwelling. Such ADUs shall be subject to a 
height limit of 16 feet and four-foot rear yard and side setbacks. 



 
 
Ordinance No. 1177-20 
Updating LMC Title 17 related to Accessory Dwelling Units 7 

 
E.  The following requirements shall apply to ADUs or JADUs created pursuant to subsection D 
of this section: 
 

1.  The City will not require, as a condition for ministerial approval of a permit application 
for the creation of an ADU or a JADU, the correction of nonconforming zoning conditions. 
 
2.  The installation of fire sprinklers shall not be required in an accessory dwelling unit if 
sprinklers are not required for the primary residence. 
 
3.  Rental of an ADU or JADU pursuant to subsection D for 30 days or less is prohibited.  
 
4.  As part of the application for a permit to create an accessory dwelling unit connected to 
an onsite water treatment system, a percolation test shall completed within the five years 
preceding the application, or, if the percolation test has been recertified, within the 10 years 
preceding the application.” 

 
SECTION 5.  A new Section 17.48.057, entitled “Junior accessory dwelling units,” is added to 

the Lawndale Municipal Code to read, in its entirety, as follows: 
 

“17.48.057 Junior accessory dwelling units  
 
JADUs located on a lot zoned for single-family use shall comply with the following 
development standards: 

 
A.  A JADU shall not exceed five hundred (500) square feet, and must be constructed within the 
existing walls of the primary single-family dwelling unit.  
 
B.  A JADU shall include a separate exterior entrance from the main entrance to the primary 
dwelling unit.  
 
C.  A JADU shall include at least an efficiency kitchen which shall include all of the following: 
i) a cooking facility with appliances; and ii) a food preparation counter and storage cabinets that 
are of reasonable size in relation to the size of the JADU.  
 
D.  A JADU may share sanitation facilities with the existing primary dwelling.  
 
E.  A JADU shall require owner-occupancy in the single-family residence in which the JADU 
will be permitted unless the owner is another governmental agency, land trust, or housing 
organization.   
 
F.  Before permit issuance, the City shall be provided with a copy of the recorded deed restriction, 
which shall run with the land, and which shall be on file with using the City’s form, to 



 
 
Ordinance No. 1177-20 
Updating LMC Title 17 related to Accessory Dwelling Units 8 

memorialize the: (i) restrictions on the size and attributes of the JADU; (ii) prohibition on the 
sale of the JADU separate from the sale of the primary residence; (iii) if the JADU is  rented, the 
unit shall not be rented for a period of less than 30 days; (iv) requirement that either the JADU 
or primary residence be owner occupied unless the owner is a governmental agency, land trust, 
or housing corporation; and (v) including a statement that the deed restriction may be enforced 
against future purchasers.  
 
 
G.  A JADU shall comply with all applicable building and safety codes, including but not limited 
to those describe in Title 15 of the Lawndale Municipal Code. 
 
H.  A JADU will be allowed on the same lot with a new ADU, provided the following criteria 
are met:  
 

a.  The ADU is fully detached and the JADU is within the proposed space of a single-
family dwelling or existing space of a single-family dwelling; and  
b.  The ADU does not exceed a total floor area of 800 square feet and a height limitation 
of 16 feet. 
 

I. No additional parking shall be required for construction of a JADU.  
 

J. Permit Requirements.   
 
Junior accessory dwelling units will be permitted ministerially, subject to compliance with this 
section, within 60 days of a complete application if there is an existing single-family or 
multifamily dwelling on the lot. If the permit application to create a junior accessory dwelling 
unit is submitted with a permit application to create a new single-family dwelling on the lot, the 
City may delay acting on the permit application for the junior accessory dwelling unit until it acts 
on the permit application to create the new single-family dwelling, but in such event the 
application to create the junior accessory dwelling unit will be considered without discretionary 
review or hearing.   
 
K.  Fees.  A junior accessory dwelling unit will not be considered to be a new residential use for 
purposes of calculating connection fees or capacity charges for utilities, including water and 
sewer service, unless the accessory dwelling unit was constructed with a new single-family 
dwelling.  This subdivision shall not be interpreted to prohibit the requirement of an inspection, 
including the imposition of a fee for that inspection, to determine if the junior accessory dwelling 
unit complies with applicable building standards.” 

 
SECTION 6.   Subsection (B)(2) of Section 17.48.060 of the Lawndale Municipal Code is 

amended to read, in its entirety, as follows: 
 



 
 
Ordinance No. 1177-20 
Updating LMC Title 17 related to Accessory Dwelling Units 9 

“An accessory dwelling unit and/or junior accessory dwelling unit that complies with the 
provisions of Sections 17.48.056 and 17.48.057, as applicable, of this code.” 

 
SECTION 7. Subsection (B) of Section 17.48.110 of the Lawndale Municipal Code is amended 

to read, in its entirety, as follows: 
 
“B.    The renting of not more than four rooms to not more than six individuals, or the 

providing of board to not more than six boarders, or both, in a single-family or two-family residence 
occupied as such, provided that a home occupation business license is obtained, provided the rent or 
board is for a period not less than thirty days, and provided that the use does not alter the character of 
the premises as a single-family or two-family residence.” 

 
SECTION 8.  A new subsection J is added to Section 17.48.110 of the Lawndale Municipal Code, 

to read, in its entirety, as follows:  
 
“J.  An accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit that complies with the 

requirements of Sections 17.48.056 and 17.48.057, as applicable, of this code.” 
 
SECTION 9. Subsection (B)(3) of Section 17.48.120 of the Lawndale Municipal Code is 

amended to read, in its entirety, as follows: 
 

  “3. An accessory dwelling unit and/or junior accessory dwelling unit 
that complies with the requirements of Section 17.48.056 and 17.48.057, as applicable, of 
this code; or” 
 
SECTION 10. Subsection (I) of Section 17.48.150 of the Lawndale Municipal Code is hereby 

deleted. 
 
SECTION 11. Subsection (B)(3) of Section 17.48.160 of the Lawndale Municipal Code is 

amended to read, in its entirety, as follows: 
 

  “3. An accessory dwelling unit and/or junior accessory dwelling unit 
that complies with the requirements of Sections 17.48.056 and 17.48.057, as 
applicable, of this code; or” 

 
SECTION 12. Subsection (J) of Section 17.48.210 of the Lawndale Municipal Code is hereby 

deleted. 
 
SECTION 13. Subsection (B)(3) of Section 17.48.230 of the Lawndale Municipal Code is 

amended to read, in its entirety, as follows: 
 

  “3. An accessory dwelling unit and/or junior accessory dwelling unit 
that complies with the requirements of Sections 17.48.056 and 17.48.057, as 
applicable, of this code; or” 

 
SECTION 14. Urgency Ordinance 1168-20 is hereby rescinded.  
 

http://qcode.us/codes/lawndale/view.php?cite=section_17.48.056&confidence=8


 
 
Ordinance No. 1177-20 
Updating LMC Title 17 related to Accessory Dwelling Units 10 

SECTION 15. This Ordinance is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 
(“CEQA”) pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21080.17 and CEQA Guidelines section 
15282(h). These sections statutorily exempt the adoption of an ordinance implementing provisions of 
Government Code Section 65852.1 and 65852.2. This ordinance would allow for the construction of 
accessory dwelling units and junior accessory dwelling units in residential zones consistent with and as 
required by state law.  Additionally, this ordinance is exempt from CEQA under Section 15061(b)(3) of 
the CEQA Guidelines, which provides that CEQA only applies to projects that have the potential for 
causing a significant effect on the environment. Where, as here, it can be seen with certainty that there 
is no possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the activity 
is not subject to CEQA. 
 
 SECTION 16. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance is for any 
reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any court of any competent jurisdiction, 
such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. The City Council 
hereby declares that it would have passed this Ordinance, and each and every section, subsection, 
sentence, clause and phrase thereof not declared invalid or unconstitutional without regard to whether 
any portion of the Ordinance would be subsequently declared invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
 SECTION 17. The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this ordinance, and 
shall make a minute of the passage and adoption thereof in the records of and the proceedings of the City 
Council at which the same is passed and adopted. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect thirty 
(30) days after its final passage and adoption, and within fifteen (15) days after its final passage, the City 
Clerk shall cause it to be posted and published in a newspaper of general circulation in the manner 
required by law. 
 
 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 19th day of October, 2020. 
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
 
  



 
 
Ordinance No. 1177-20 
Updating LMC Title 17 related to Accessory Dwelling Units 11 

ATTEST: 
 
State of California  ) 
County of Los Angeles ) SS 
City of Lawndale  ) 
 
 
 

I, Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk of the City of Lawndale, California, do hereby certify 
that the City Council duly introduced the foregoing Ordinance No. 1177-20 at its regular meeting held 
on the 5th day of October, 2020, and duly approved and adopted said ordinance at its regular meeting 
held on the 19th day of October, 2020, by the following roll call vote: 
 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor       
Bernadette Suarez, Mayor Pro Tem      
James H. Osborne      
Pat Kearney      
Daniel Reid      

 
 
______________________________  ______________ 
Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk    Date 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Tiffany J. Israel, City Attorney 
 



4









5









6











7













MINUTES OF THE 
LAWNDALE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

    October 5, 2020 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 
Mayor Pullen-Miles called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the City Hall council chamber, 
14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, California.  
 
Councilmembers Present:  Mayor Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor Pro Tem Bernadette Suarez, 

Councilmember James H. Osborne, Councilmember Pat Kearney, 
Councilmember Daniel Reid  

 
Other Participants:  City Clerk Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Manager Kevin M. 

Chun, City Attorney Tiffany J. Israel, Los Angeles County 
Sheriff's Department Captain Duane Allen, Community Services 
Director Mike Estes, Assistant to the City Manager/Human 
Resources Director Raylette Felton, Municipal Services Director 
Michael Reyes, Finance Director Marla Pendleton, Community 
Development Director Sean Moore, Assistant City Clerk Matthew 
Ceballos, and Interim Public Works Director Kahono Oei. 

 
B. CEREMONIALS  
 

Councilmember Pat Kearney led the flag salute. 
 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT 
 
Captain Duane Allen summarized recent law enforcement activities.  
 

D. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA  
 

No comments provided. 
 

E.   COMMENTS FROM COUNCIL 
 
No comments provided. 

 
F. CONSENT CALENDAR  

 
1. Motion to read by title only and waive further reading of all ordinances listed on the  

Agenda 
Recommendation: that the City Council approve. 

 
2. Amending Lawndale Municipal Code Chapter 17.50, Density Bonus Provisions for    

Residential Units 
Recommendation: that the City Council approve this second reading and adopt Ordinance 
No. 1175-20 amending Lawndale Municipal Code Chapter 17.50, density bonus 
requirements to comply with recent changes in State Law. 
 
 

8



Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
October 5, 2020 
Page 2 
 
 

3. Amending Lawndale Municipal Code Sections 8.24.115 and 8.24.200, Providing    
Authority for Recovery of Attorney’s Fees and Imposition of Treble Damages in 
Public Nuisance Abatement Actions 
Recommendation: that the City Council approve this second reading and adopt Ordinance 
1176-20, amending Lawndale Municipal Code Sections 8.24.115 and 8.24.200, 
Providing Authority for Recovery of Attorney’s Fees and Imposition of Treble Damages 
in  Public Nuisance Abatement Actions. 

 
4. Amending Existing Agreement for Installation of Telecommunication Equipment in    

the Right of Way 
Recommendation: that the City Council approve an amendment to the Right-of-Way use 
agreement with Sunesys LLC identifying Crown Castle Fiber LLC as its successor. 
 

5. Consideration of Claims Against the City 
Recommendation: that the City Council reject the claims filed by Papa John’s 
International, Erika V. Mendoza, Leticia Bravo Cano and Christopher Espinoza and 
instruct staff to process the appropriate correspondence to the claimants.  

 
6. Accounts Payable Register 

Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution No. CC-2010-054, authorizing 
the payment of certain claims and demands in the amount of $181,240.21. 

 
7. Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Regular Meeting – September 21, 2020 

Recommendation: that the City Council approve. 
 

A motion by Councilmember Kearney to approve the consent calendar was seconded by 
Mayor Pro Tem Bernadette Suarez and carried by a vote of 5-0, following City Attorney 
Israel's reading of the title of Ordinance Nos.  1175-20 and 1176-20. 
 

G. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
8. Amending Title 17 of the Lawndale Municipal Code pertaining to the Development  

Standards for Accessory Dwelling Units to reflect recent changes in State Law and 
a Finding of Exemption from California Environmental Quality Act 
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) conduct a public hearing (b) determine that 
Ordinance No. 1177-20 is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 
(“CEQA”) pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines; and (c) introduce 
and approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 1177-20, amending Title 17 of the 
Lawndale Municipal Code regarding ADU amendments to reflect recent changes in State 
law.  

 
Community Development Director Sean Moore reported on the proposed Amendment to Title 
17 of the Lawndale Municipal Code pertaining to the Development Standards for Accessory 
Dwelling Units to reflect recent changes in State Law and a Finding of Exemption from 
California Environmental Quality Act. 
 
Mayor Pullen-Miles opened and closed the public hearing immediately at 6:41 p.m., there being 
no one wishing to testify. 



Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
October 5, 2020 
Page 3 

A motion by Councilmember Kearney to approve Ordinance No. 1177-20, amending Title 
17 of the Lawndale Municipal Code regarding ADU amendments to reflect recent changes 
in State law, was seconded by Councilmember Reid and carried by a vote of 5-0, following 
City Attorney Israel's reading of the title of Ordinance Nos.  1177-20. 

H. ADMINISTRATION

9. Harold E. Hofmann Community Center Facilities Use Policy
Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution No. CC-2010-055 related to
City Council Policy 104-20 affecting changes to the Harold E. Hofmann Community
Center Facilities Use Rules and Regulations.

Community Services Director Mike Estes reported on the proposed changes to the Harold E. 
Hofmann Community Center Facilities Use Rules and Regulations. 

Councilmember Kearney requested clarification how removing Sheriff’s and hiring unarmed 
security service will improve the current situation with inebriated guest and expressed alcohol 
should not be removed and non-refundable security deposits not be applied during this difficult 
time on residents and the public. 

Councilmember Reid inquired if staff setting up and breaking down the events equipment is to 
mitigate equipment damages. 

Community Services Director Mike Estes responded accordingly to all comments. 

Mayor Pro Tem Suarez believed beer, wine, and champagne should remain in the reservations 
policy with additional new rules also spoke in opposition to the Non-Refundable Deposit system 
and believed we can revisit the Facilities Policy at a time Los Angeles County Health orders have 
been lifted for social gatherings.  

Councilmember Osborne concurred with the prior Councilmembers comments and added that a 
Sheriff’s presence is important for situations which need an instant arrest. 

Community Services Director Mike Estes clarified Sheriffs will be present for the reservations 
which include alcohol in the event.  

Mayor Robert Pullen-Miles spoke about maintaining the beer, wine, and champagne option for 
the reservation events and spoke in support of placing Sheriff’s deputies for hard alcohol events 
only. The Mayor went on to express his concern about the 25% non-refundable deposit. 

City Manager Kevin M. Chun expressed gratitude for all the comments and explained that staff 
will take into consideration all of their comments and the item would be brought back at a later 
meeting.  

City Council reached a general consensus to make no changes and revisit the Harold E. 
Hofmann Community Center Facilities Use Rules and Regulations at a later date. 



Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
October 5, 2020 
Page 4 

10. Declaring an Emergency Condition and Approving Repairs without Notice for Bids
for the Harold E. Hofmann Community Center
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) adopt Resolution No. CC-2010-056 declaring
an emergency condition and approving the work necessary to make repairs to the Harold
E. Hoffman Community Center without notice for bids pursuant to California public
contract code sections 1102, 20168, and 22050 (b) authorize the Director of Finance to
use and transfer the actual cost for the insurance deductible and uncovered cost, not to
exceed $69,161, from the Urban Development Action Grants (UDAG) Fund, Fund 215,
to Measure A Fund 281, in the event LACRPOSD denies the request to use Measure A-
Maintenance and Servicing funding for the Community Center repairs (c) authorize the
City Manager to execute contracts and other documents necessary to complete this work.

Community Services Director Mike Estes reported on the proposed Emergency Condition and 
Approving Repairs without Notice for Bids for the Harold E. Hofmann Community Center. 

Councilmember Reid inquired if the cost and damage of the Harold E. Hofmann Community 
Center was comparable to the flood that occurred inside City Hall years ago.  

Community Services Director Mike Estes responded the flooding was mostly in the meeting 
rooms of the Harold E. Hofmann Community Center and believes the cost could be around 
$100,000.  

City Manager Kevin M. Chun explained that the $69,000 is the funding available through grants 
and $10,000 is towards the insurance deductible. 

Councilmember Kearney inquired if Community Services Department staff will have to be 
relocated.  

City Manager Kevin M. Chun responded it will not be necessary to remove any staff because 
there are no health concern and the work would be done with no impact to staff. Community 
Services Director Mike Estes added staff are currently taking alternate routes accessing the 
building.  

A motion by Councilmember Kearney to adopt Resolution No. CC-2010-056 declaring an 
emergency condition and approving the work necessary to make repairs to the Harold E. 
Hoffman Community Center without notice for bids pursuant to California public contract 
code sections 1102, 20168, and 22050 authorize the Director of Finance to use and transfer 
the actual cost for the insurance deductible and uncovered cost, not to exceed $69,161, from 
the Urban Development Action Grants (UDAG) Fund, Fund 215, to Measure A Fund 281, 
in the event LACRPOSD denies the request to use Measure A-Maintenance and Servicing 
funding for the Community Center repairs authorize the City Manager to execute contracts 
and other documents necessary to complete this work, was seconded by Councilmember 
Reid and carried by a vote of 5-0. 

11. CARES Act Funding Allocation Revision
Recommendation: that the City Council approve the Business Revitalization
Subcommittee’s recommendation to maintain the City’s CARES Act funding allocations
as approved by the City Council on September 8, 2020.



Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
October 5, 2020 
Page 5 
 
 

 
City Manager Kevin M. Chun reported on CARES Act Funding Allocation Revision. 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Suarez inquired if the City applies CARES act funding to “Project Roomkey” 
expenses and the City absorbs additional cost after, would Los Angeles County be responsible 
for that cost. City Attorney Tiffany J. Israel responded the City will only be able to accept funding 
for liabilities one time. 

 
Mayor Pullen-Miles commented that he would like to continue supporting the small businesses 
in Lawndale with funding grant opportunities to prevent them from closing or other hardship.   

 
A motion by Councilmember Kearney to approve the Business Revitalization 
Subcommittee’s recommendation to maintain the City’s CARES Act funding allocations as 
approved by the City Council on September 8, 2020, was seconded by Councilmember Reid 
and carried by a vote of 5-0. 

 
I. CITY MANAGER'S REPORT 

 
City Manager Kevin Chun reported the Government Finance Officers Association awarded the 
City a Certificate of Achievement for excellence and comprehensive annual financial reporting 
of the fiscal year that ended on June 30th, 2019. The City Manager went on expressing his 
gratitude for the professional work done by Finance Director Marla Pendleton and the Finance 
Department, spoke how it shows good responsibility and transparency from the City and would 
like to achieve this on an annual basis. 
 
Councilmember Kearney and Mayor Robert Pullen-Miles requested to place the award on a 
future agenda and present it to Finance Director Marla Pendleton and the Finance Department 
 
City Manager Kevin Chun responded that the City will present it as soon as the framed certificate 
arrives.  
 
City Manager Kevin Chun announced the City has partnered with UCLA and will host a Blood 
Drive on October 6, 2020, from 8:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m., directly outside of City Hall.   

 
J. ITEMS FROM CITY COUNCILMEMBERS 

 
12. Mayor/City Councilmembers Report of Attendance at Meetings and/or Events 
 
Councilmember Osborne had nothing to report.  
 
Councilmember Reid had nothing to report. 
 
Councilmember Kearney had nothing to report. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Suarez had nothing to report. 
 



Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
October 5, 2020 
Page 6 
 
 

Mayor Pullen-Miles attended the L.A. County Sanitation District Board of Directors meeting and 
South Bay Association of Realtors Mayors panel where COVID-19 related issues in neighboring 
Cities were discussed. 
 

K. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to conduct, the Mayor adjourned the meeting at 7:36 p.m. 

 
 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk 
 
Approved: 10/19/2020 
 

 



9



















































































































































































10



























11





City of Lawndale 
Budget Update 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020  

1 

OVERVIEW 

This quarterly report represents the City’s unaudited year-end revenues and expenditures results through 
June 30, 2020.  It highlights the financial results of the General Fund and includes the results of all funds 
maintained by the City.  

GENERAL FUND 
The General Fund supports the day-to-day activities of the City, which includes General Government, 
Public Safety, Municipal Services, and Public Works.  Effective July 1, 2019, Community Development, 
and Community Services Recreation and Senior Programs were moved into separate Enterprise Funds to 
better account for their external service provided outside of the General Fund.  Activities remaining in the 
General, Fund are primarily supported from sales and use, district transaction, motor vehicle in-lieu, utility 
users and property taxes. 

General Fund Financial Condition:  Fiscal Year 2019-20 closed with accruals being booked for the year 
and appropriations being continued for multiple year projects.  Adjustments can still be made as the result 
of the year-end audit scheduled to be completed by December 31, 2020.  Overall, the General Fund had a 
positive budget variance of $889,599; $271,172 related to actual revenues exceeding anticipated revenue 
for the year and $618,427 related to actual expenditures being less than the amended budget.  Actual 
revenue exceeded expenditures by $608,910 for the fiscal year. 

Revenue. The General Fund, which was 55.9% of the City’s total actual revenue, was $557,264, 3.7%, 
higher than fiscal year-end June 30, 2019 revenue.  The most significant year-to-year increase was attributed 
to Measure L ¾ cent district transaction tax, which attributed to $1,849,401 increase since the tax was 
imposed on April 1, 2019, generating three months verses twelve months in Fiscal Year 2018-19 compared 
to 2019-20.  The most significant year-to-year variance was <$1,413,189> attributed to one-time money 
received from the sale of City property in fiscal year 2018-19. In addition, Fiscal Year 2019-20 ended with 
actual revenue being $271,172 higher than the amended budget, as summarized below. 



City of Lawndale 
Budget Update 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020  

2 

 Sales Transaction Tax- Measure L:  The ¾ cent district transaction tax became effective on April 1,
2019, with $533,490 collected for the three month period in Fiscal Year 2018-19.  With twelve months
of collections in Fiscal Year 2019-20, $2,382,891 of revenue was received, an increase of $1,849,401
from the prior fiscal year.  Actual Fiscal Year 2019-20 revenue exceeded the $2.1 million budget by
$282,891. 

 Utility Users Tax (UUT):  UUT is imposed on amounts paid for telephone communication services,
energy usage, gas transported, production of electricity or gas for self-use, and water delivered through
mains or pipes (Lawndale Municipal Code Chapter 3.14).  Revenue has been declining since Fiscal Year
2011-12.  Compared to Fiscal Year 2018-19, revenue decreased 2.5%, $43,551, from $1,718,941 to
$1,675,391.  Compared to the $1,800,000 budget, a shortfall of $124,609 was realized in Fiscal Year
2019-20.

 Other Taxes: The predominant source of revenue in this category include Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT
or hotel bed tax), business license, and franchise fees.  Realized revenue decreased $133,192, 7.4%, from
$1,811,607 in Fiscal Year 2018-19 to $1,678,415 in Fiscal Year 2019-20.  The overall decrease is
attributed to COVID19 restrictions impacting travel and hotel lodging, decreasing TOT by $137,528
between the fiscal years.  The two largest hotels in the City contracted as shelters for the at-risk homeless
population through the state Project Roomkey program.  One of the hotels paid TOT for the 4th quarter
of the fiscal year, while payment from the second hotel was not received within the 60-day revenue
accrual period to be included in the year-end revenue. Compared to the $1,849,700 revenue budget, a
$171,285 budget shortfall was realized in this revenue category, of which $168,659 was attributed to
TOT.

 Court & Traffic Fines:  Revenue includes parking fines and forfeitures received from cited drivers,
Courts, and the Department of Motor Vehicles.  Revenue increased $11,092, 1.5%, from $761,042 in
Fiscal Year 2018-19 to $772,134 in Fiscal Year 2019-20.  Compared to the $666,700 revenue budget, an
additional $105,434 was realized during the fiscal year despite of Code Enforcement not enforcing
parking violations during stay-at-home orders.

 Charges for Services: Revenue includes encroachment and industrial waste permits, small cell wireless
facility fees, and vehicle impound fees, which decreased $39,985, 13.1%, from $305,356 in Fiscal Year
2018-19 to $265,371 in Fiscal Year 2019-20.  Compared to the $196,140 revenue budget, an additional
$69,231 was realized during the fiscal year.  The most significant increase was in encroachment permits
which yielded $103,166 over budget.



City of Lawndale 
Budget Update 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020    

 

 
3 

 

 

 

To align the budget more closely with the actual General Fund revenue received during Fiscal Year 2019-
20, the following budget adjustment for variances with the absolute value of $100,000 or more is 
recommended: 
 

Increase estimated revenue: 
100-000-400.210 Sales Transaction Tax- Measure L   $280,000 
100-000-435.200 Interest – LRA Loan       150,000 
100-000-410.130 Encroachment Permits       100,000 
          $530,000 
Decrease estimated revenue: 
100-000-400.600 Utility Users Tax     $160,000 
100-000-465.500 Reimbursement of State Mandate     120,000  
          $280,000 
 
Net Change in General Fund Revenue      $250,000 
 
Expenditures. At the end of the fiscal year, $618,427 of General Fund appropriation budget was 
unexpended, as shown in the following summary by department. 
 

    

To better understand the details of the above budgets, the below tables are presented displaying General 
Fund expenditures by appropriation category; the total variance includes personnel, operations, and capital 
appropriations, which made up <$184,245>, $601,387, and $201,284 of the respective variance.   
 



City of Lawndale 
Budget Update 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020    

 

 
4 

 

  
 

  
 

 
 



City of Lawndale 
Budget Update 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020    

 

 
5 

 

Based on our review of the above three tables, there are several factors significantly attributing to the 
unexpended appropriations as of June 30, 2020.  These differences make up $486,689, 79%, of the $618,427 
net difference in the General Fund. 
  

  
 
Public Works Unexpended Capital Project Funding- Savings relate to unexpended Fiscal Year 2018-19 
annual street improvement project funding of $201,284, which was carried forward from Fiscal Year 2018-
19 to 2019-20.  Street improvement projects completed during the fiscal year did not require General Fund 
support.  Public Works would like to continue the unexpended appropriations into Fiscal Year 2020-2021 
to utilize as matching funds for the 2019-20 street improvement projects to be completed in Fiscal Year 
2020-21.   
 
City Manager Salary Savings- The City Manager’s retirement, part-time contract labor, and vacancy for six 
months attributed to the $97,979 salary savings at fiscal year-end. 
 
City Clerk Salary Savings- The Deputy City Clerk retirement, vacancy and reclassification into an 
Administrative Assistant II, resulted in $59,322 salary savings at fiscal year-end.   
 
Municipal Services Salary Savings- Of the $48,040 salary savings to the General Fund, $37,078 of 
department personnel costs were transferred to the Coronavirus Relief Fund, Fund 284, which is supported 
by CARES Act funding.  These costs included staff quarantine time off and homeless outreach related to 
the coronavirus.  
 



City of Lawndale 
Budget Update 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020    

 

 
6 

 

Administrative Services Operations Savings- At fiscal year-end, Administrative Services had an 
unexpended operations budget of $91,708 ($28,642 expended from the $120,350 operations budget).  Of 
the unexpended balance, $87,121 is related to outstanding obligations to be continued in Fiscal Year 2020-
21.  Specifically, $60,000, $12,767, and $14,354 are being continued into fiscal year 2020-21 for a citywide 
class and compensation study (responses to a Request for Proposal were obtained and the award is pending), 
the ongoing Public Works Director recruitment (budget approved by the City Council on February 18, 
2020) and ongoing contract personnel services, respectively. 
 
General Operations Savings- At fiscal year-end, General Operations had an unexpended operations budget 
of $79,183 ($816,823 expended from the $896,006 operations budget).  Two factors primarily attributed to 
the savings: contingency budget set-aside for labor union negotiations and Community Center upgrades. 
Of the $226,600 set aside for union negotiations in the Fiscal Year 2019-20 budget, actual labor increases 
of $191,245 were negotiated and transferred to the respective department budgets to cover cost increases 
leaving $33,355 unexpended at fiscal year-end.  The $50,000 budgeted for Community Center upgrades 
did not occur during the year and these costs will not be carried forward into Fiscal Year 2020-21 as other 
funding sources are available to fund improvement projects. 
 
Information Systems Operational Savings- Of the $285,050 amended operations budget for Information 
Systems in Fiscal Year 2019-20, $243,062 was expended, leaving an available balance of $41,828. Web 
design costs for the City website were the significant factor affecting the remaining balance; $50,000 was 
budgeted and the contract was awarded for $25,900, leaving an unexpended balance of $24,100.  Since the 
project was funded through an operating transfer from Fund 215, Restricted Urban Development Fund, the 
unexpended balance was not transferred and remains restricted in Fund 215.  At fiscal year-end, $6,205 of 
the website design contact was outstanding and appropriations require continuation into Fiscal Year 2020-
21 for contract completion and payment. 
 
Sheriff’s Department Contract Services Savings- The $149,204 unexpended operations budget was 
attributed to $62,701 being budgeted over the contract services agreement amount; $26,808 savings for the 
Youth Day Parade, which the event was cancelled due to stay-at-home orders related to the coronavirus; 
and $59,500 of cost being transferred to the Coronavirus Relief Fund, Fund 284, to be offset against CARES 
Act funding.  Actual COVID19 related costs eligible for reimbursement was $192,109, but was reduced to 
make funding available for small business grants. 
 
Municipal Services Operational Savings- Of the $208,330 budgeted for the department, $81,404 was 
unexpended at fiscal year-end.  In addition to office supplies and other routine expenses being lower due to 
stay-at-home orders, the most significant operational cost savings included unexpended funds set aside for 
abatement repairs, contract services, vehicle maintenance, vehicle fuel, and special events costs, which 
attributed to $32,300, $17,913, $8,194, $6,391 and $4,777, respective savings. 
√ Abatement costs were established for outstanding code enforcement cases of which only one case 

required funding to resolve during the year.  The Department Director established a new budget 
of $25,000 for Fiscal Year 2020-21; therefore, the unexpended amount does not require 
continuation into Fiscal Year 2020-21. 

√ The contract services budget increased $12,000 in Fiscal Year 2019-20 from 2018-19; however, 
the additional appropriation was not required since this account ended with a $17,913 saving.  
Significant savings in this area included animal control services, veterinarian services, and 
miscellaneous costs (including hearing officer fees), which attributed to a savings of $7,200, 
$5,000 and $4,000, respectively, for the fiscal year.  In addition, there was savings associated with 
the cancelation of City sponsored vaccination clinics during the year. 



City of Lawndale 
Budget Update 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020    

 

 
7 

 

√ Vehicle maintenance and fuel cost savings related to the replacement of a fuel vehicle with an Air 
Quality Management District funded hybrid vehicle.  The vehicle purchase avoided extensive 
maintenance costs during the year, and in addition to less vehicle usage due to stay-at-home orders, 
the vehicle mileage per gallon saved on fuel costs. 

√ The special events savings relate to the year-end pet fair being cancelled due to COVID19 
concerns.  

 
Grounds Maintenance Operational Savings- Of the $795,355 budgeted for the department, $109,837 was 
unexpended at fiscal year-end.  Areas of significant savings included contract services, water, maintenance 
supplies, and building equipment maintenance, which were attributed to $32,441, $19,644, $8,587, and 
$7,165 of the respective cost savings.   
√ The majority of the $32,441 budget savings in Contract Services was for $18,500 budgeted for 

“other services as needed,” which was unexpended during the fiscal year, $10,002 remaining from 
the tree trimming contract and one-quarter of the HVAC maintenance contract not paid during the 
fiscal year.  The HVAC contract expense of $5,419 needs to be continued into Fiscal Year 2020-
21 for payment. 

√ The savings in the water account is primarily attributed to the department monitoring the bills and 
ensuring water usage variances are investigated and if appropriate, corrected quickly. 

√ Both the Maintenance Supply and Building Equipment budgeted accounts included routine 
expenditures required for operations and additional amounts for other items as needed; $10,500 
and $7,500 in the accounts, respectively.  The majority of these additional amounts were 
unexpended at fiscal year-end. 

 
Community Services Crossing Guard Savings- With statewide ‘shelter-in-place’ orders and school closures, 
contract services for crossing guards were suspended, attributing to $44,667 of savings for the fiscal year. 
 
General Operations Overrun- Two accounts primarily attributed to the $149,464 budget overage in the 
General Operations department; retiree health benefits and the Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS) 
Excess Fund which were <$171,592> over budget and $22,440 unexpended at fiscal year-end.  The retiree 
health benefits overrun included premium increases of $18,507 for the fiscal year and a prior period 
adjustment of $153,085.  Over the years, retiree health benefits were paid from the Employee Benefits trust 
fund without any funding source to pay these premiums.  In addition, payroll deduction differences rolled 
into this fund without being charged back to departments.  Over the last year, internal controls have been 
put into place to ensure expenditures are charged to appropriate department budgets, and these amounts are 
included in the budget process.  In order to resolve the cumulate negative balance in the Employee Benefits 
trust fund, $153,085 was charged to the General Fund in fiscal year 2019-20.  With the new processes in 
place, the fund can now be reconciled, and transactions properly accounted for on an ongoing basis.  A 
budget adjustment is requested to increase the operations budget to absorb the negative trust fund balance 
and cost increase.  As for the unexpended PARS, the budget requires continuation for payment in Fiscal 
Year 2020-21. 
 
Public Works General Fund Personnel Overrun- During the budget process, Public Works allocates staff 
time between numerous funding sources and funds.  Some of these funding sources have caps on the amount 
of staff time (administrative time) that can be reimbursed.  Specifically, the Los Angeles Metropolitan 
Transportation Authority (LA Metro) Local Return Programs (Proposition A, Proposition C, Measure R, 
and Measure M) has a cap on the amount of administrative costs allowed on each program or project.  
Administrative costs, which include salaries and benefits, office supplies and equipment, and other 
overhead costs, are limited to 20% of annual expenditures.  Because of this cap, salaries and benefit costs 
exceeding the 20% cap was charged to other funding sources, specifically these costs were reallocated to 



City of Lawndale 
Budget Update 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020    

 

 
8 

 

the General Fund at fiscal year-end.  In addition to the 20% cap, for Fiscal Year 2019-20, some of the 
revenue received from external sources, such as gas tax, were less than anticipated.  Therefore, the excess 
costs over the revenue had to be reallocated to the General Fund.  Since public works is the only department 
recovering from many funding sources for time expended on projects, personnel costs commonly get 
reallocated to the general fund once final revenue and cost numbers are known. Below is a summary of the 
personnel costs reallocated from LA Metro funding since the charges exceeded the allowable cap at fiscal 
year-end:      
 

 
 
General Fund Support Overrun- Actual Operating Transfers from the General Fund were $2,126,996, 
which was $123,493 over the $2,003,503 amended budget for Fiscal Year 2019-20.  The increase was 
attributed to an additional $129,108 to support the Community Services Recreation program operational 
deficit ($1,094,883 General Fund support was required for the program to breakeven for the fiscal year), 
which was offset by $5,616 less support required for the Community Services Senior Activities program 
since additional grant resources were obtained during the fiscal year.  Below are citywide operational 
transfers between funds at fiscal year-end compared to the amended budget for comparison. 
 

 
 
In summarizing the significant General Fund expenditure budget variances, $337,393 of appropriations 
require continuation into Fiscal Year 2020-21 ($201,284 for capital project matching funds, which is 
addressed on Page 16 of this report and $136,108.73 for City Council discretionary funds and contract 
services extending beyond June 30).  Below is the recommended budget adjustment for unexpended 
appropriations at June 30, 2020 to be continued into Fiscal Year 2020-21 for non-capital project General 
Fund expenditures: 
 



City of Lawndale 
Budget Update 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020    

 

 
9 

 

Increased appropriations: 
100-110-540.311 Mayor Discretionary           $1,728.55 
100-110-540.312 D Reid Discretionary             3,716.02 
100-110-540.313 J Osborne Discretionary             1,747.97 
100-110-540.314 B Suarez Discretionary             3,084.92 
100-110-540.315 P Kearney Discretionary            1,200.02 
100-140-530.100 GF City Mgr Contract Srvs (Communication Public Outreach)        3,486.25 
100-150-510.800 GF Admin Srvs Recruitment (PW Director)        12,767.00 
100-150-530.100 GF Admin Srvs Contract Services 

(Comp & Class Study, Investigative Srvs)        74,354.00 
100-150-510.800 GF IT Spec Expense (Website Redesign)          6,205.00 
100-160-505.600 GF Operations PARS Excess Funds             22,400.00 
100-320-530.100 GF Grounds Maint Contract Services (HVAC)          5,419.00 
 

General Fund Subtotal      $136,108.73 
 

The following budget adjustment is recommended for the actual to budget variance related to retiree health 
benefits: 
 

Increase appropriations: 
100-160-505.600 GF General Operations Retiree Health Benefits   $171,592 
 
CITYWIDE OVERVIEW – NEGATIVE FUND BALANCES 
 
Below is a summary of all funds, excluding the General Fund which we analyzed above, showing the 
unaudited revenue and expenditures during Fiscal Year 2019-20 and the related fund balance.  For those 
funds with negative fund balances that could be resolved during the year, accounting adjustments were 
posted to the General Ledger.  As of June 30, 2020, three funds had negative balances, as shown below: 
 

  



City of Lawndale 
Budget Update 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020    

 

 
10 

 

 
Fund 203 – TDA Article 3 
 
The LA Metro Transportation Development Act (TDA) Article 3 funds may be used for design and 
construction of pedestrian and bicycle facilities, including sidewalk wheelchair ramps.  During the fiscal 
year, the $33,276 available funding was expended, but due to an error in the reimbursement claim, only 
$31,612 was received.  An amended claim will be prepared to collect the $1,664 difference, which made 
up the negative balance at fiscal year-end. 
 
Fund 240 – Proposition C25 Grant 
 
Proposition C25 grant funding has been dedicated to the Inglewood Avenue Corridor Widening Project.  
Phase III of the project was completed by November 30, 2019.  The negative fund balance of <$424,339>, 
represents the outstanding balance due through grant reimbursement, which was submitted in September 
2020, and retention on Phase I of the project, which will be reimbursed upon project completion in Fiscal 
Year 2020-21. 
 
Fund 275 – Measure R Grant Traffic Signal 
 
The one-half cent Measure R sales tax was approved in 2008 by Los Angeles County voters, and 
administered by LA Metro for developing and/or improving local public transit, paratransit, and related 
transportation infrastructure.  Funding has been used for street capital projects.  The <$20,311> negative 
fund balance at fiscal year-end represents the outstanding retention withheld and due to the City. 
 
APPROPRIATION BUDGET TO ACTUAL – NON-GENERAL FUND 
 
Total expenditures (including cash transfers and non-operating expenses) for all budgetary funds, excluding 
the General Fund, were $11,545,243 for Fiscal Year 2019-20.  In order to compare actual expenditures to 
budgeted appropriations, three tables were prepared by expenditure classification (personnel, operational, 
and capital expenditures, which actual expenditures were $2,497,579, $6,483,568, and $2,564,096, for the 
respective classifications) comparing the amended budget to actual year-end expenditures by fund.  Below 
is a summary of all funds, excluding the General Fund which we analyzed at the beginning of this report.   
 
Personnel Costs 

 



City of Lawndale 
Budget Update 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020    

 

 
11 

 

 
For funds outside of the General Fund, the amended budget for Fiscal Year 2019-20 salaries and benefit 
(personnel costs) were $3,090,741, of which actual expenditures were $2,497,579.  The most significant 
factor attributing to the $593,162 unexpended budget was the 20% of annual expenditure limit placed on 
LA Metro funding for administrative costs.  Below are explanations for each fund with personnel budget 
variances with the absolute value of $50,000 or more. 
 
Proposition A – Local Transit Program, Fund 206 
 
The Amended Personnel Budget for LA Metro Proposition A included 2.04 full-time equivalents from the 
Community Services and Finance Department for a total of $233,876.  Actual expenditures for the fiscal 
year were $113,665, which was $120,211 less than budgeted.  As noted on page 7 of this report, $64,751 
of personnel costs were reclassified to the Community Services Enterprise Fund 277 because administrative 
costs exceeded the 20% administrative limit.  Since services for the Lawndale Beat (Proposition A direct 
costs) were reduced during the fiscal year, this lead to lower indirect costs recovery from the funding source.  
In addition, less hours than anticipated in the budget were charged to Proposition A since staff were 
reallocated to meal delivery service, partly recovered through new one-time CDBG funding, and paid-time 
off related to stay-at-home orders. 
    
Proposition C – Local Transit Assist, Fund 207 
 
As noted under Proposition A, the $283,554 remaining salary and benefit budget at fiscal year-end was 
primarily the result of reclassifying $171,676 of indirect cost (Public Works Admin., Street Maintenance 
and Engineering salaries and benefits) to the General Fund.  Proposition C – Local Transit Assistance allows 
a maximum of 20% administrative costs to be charged against the funding source.  Total direct costs for 
the fiscal year were $229,106 of which $57,276 (20%) was allowed for administrative costs.  Actual 
administrative costs were $228,952; therefore, $171,676 could not be recovered from Proposition C, and 
was charged back to the General Fund for cost recovery.  In addition, administrative time off related to 
stay-at-home orders was not determined to be an allowable cost to recover from external funding sources 
and was directly charged against the General Fund during the last three and a half months of the fiscal year. 
 
Measure R – Local Transit, Fund 244 
 
The $125,111 remaining salary and benefit budget at fiscal year-end was primarily the result of 
reclassifying $98,110 of indirect cost to the General Fund.  LA Metro Measure R allows a maximum of 
20% administrative costs to be charged against the funding source.  Total direct costs were $39,540 of 
which $9,885 (20%) was allowed for administrative costs.  Actual administrative costs were $107,995, 
therefore, $98,110 could not be recovered from Measure R, and was charged back to the General Fund for 
cost recovery. 
 
Measure M – Local Return, Fund 272 
 
Since no direct costs were charged to Measure M during the year, no indirect administrative costs (salaries 
and benefits) could be recovered.  Therefore, $12,877 of salary and benefit costs had to be reclassified to 
the General Fund. 



City of Lawndale 
Budget Update 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020    

 

 
12 

 

 
SB1 Gas Tax Street Rehabilitation, Fund 274 
 
During the fiscal year, 50% of the Assistant Engineer’s salary and benefit costs were charged to Senate Bill 
1 Gas Tax funding; however, no costs were budgeted for the expense.  Funding was available for such 
costs; therefore, it is recommended to establish a budget for the fiscal year. 
 
Community Services Department, Fund 277 
 
The $82,818 salaries and benefits budget shortfall ($897,529 budget - $980,347 actual expenditure) in 
Community Services was significantly attributed to the 20% administrative cost limit for Proposition C, 
which resulted in $64,751 being charged back to the department.  The remaining shortfall was the result of 
Council directions to pay part-time staff unable to work due to stay-at-home orders.  Specifically, part-time 
Park staff were paid their average hours worked (based on the month prior to stay-at-home orders imposed 
by the State) rather than hours being reduced during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year based on total 
budgeted time/ cost.  
 
2009 TABS, Fund 307 
 
The salaries and benefits budget was based on allocated costs from Public Works Administration (Director 
of Public Works and Administrative Analyst, 80%  and 25% of respectively personnel costs) and 
Engineering (Associate Engineer 35% of personnel costs).  However, actual costs reflect only time charged 
by the Administrative Analyst.  The Director position was vacant for the entire year and the Interim Director 
charged contract time (operations cost) directly to projects.  The Associate Engineer did not charge time to 
this funding source during the year.  Therefore, actual charges were significantly less ($175,987) than 
budgeted. 
 
Operational Costs 
 

  
 



City of Lawndale 
Budget Update 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020    

 

 
13 

 

For funds outside of the General Fund, the Fiscal Year 2019-20 amended budget for operational costs was 
$9,185,468 compared to $6,483,568 actual expense.   The Gas Tax, Air Quality Management District, 
Proposition A- Local Transit Program, Community Services Enterprise, Community Development 
Enterprise, Coronavirus Relief and the Successor Agency Debt Service funds significantly attributed to the 
$2,701,900 difference as described below. 
 
Gas Tax Fund, Fund 201 
 
The operational cost of $490,904 was budgeted in the Gas Tax Fund for street sweeping, traffic signal 
repairs, maintenance, striping and legend work, engineering studies, and curb gutter and side walk repairs.  
Actual cost was $409,095, leaving a budget surplus of $81,809.   The significant budget variances were in 
contract services, professional services and special expense with a surplus budget of $55,872, $10,205, and 
$9,058, respectively. 
 
√ Contract Services for the combined Public Works and Street Maintenance department budget was 

$386,904, of which $331,032 was expended for the fiscal year leaving $55,872 unexpended.  The 
unexpended balance included $21,886 from the administrative budget for traffic signal 
maintenance, street striping and street legend work, $20,000 from the street maintenance budget 
for curb, gutter, and sidewalk repairs, $6,600 for bridge soffit lighting and $11,611 for concrete 
and pavement repair.  With Public Works concentrating on the Inglewood Avenue Corridor-
Widening project, primarily funded through Proposition C25 funding, Gas Tax funding was not 
utilized for the listed services during the year. 

√ Professional Services of $20,000 was budgeted for traffic engineering services and studies, of 
which $9,795 was expended, leaving $10,205 unexpended budget at fiscal year-end. 

√ Special Expenses of $10,000 was budgeted for miscellaneous permits, licenses, and traffic control 
costs, of which no costs were charged to the Gas Tax fund during the year. 

 
Air Quality Management District, Fund 202 
 
The Amended Budget included $143,000 to acquire four clean energy vehicles, of which one was purchased 
for $24,504, leaving $118,496 unexpended at fiscal year-end.  The budget included the following: 
√ Municipal Services- Replaced a 2007 Ford Escape requiring major repairs with a 2020 Toyota Prius 

Hybrid.  The budgeted of $28,000 was established, and $24,504, including LED emergency vehicle 
light package was expended on the vehicle. 

√ Street Maintenance budgeted two replacement vehicles for a total of $75,000; however, the vehicles 
were not acquired by fiscal year-end.  One of the two vehicles has already been sent to auction 
(2007 Chevy Silverado).  Both vehicles still need replacement and are recommended for 
appropriation continuation into Fiscal Year 2020-21. 

√ Community Services budgeted $40,000 to replace their Saturn Vue with a Toyota Rav Hybrid.  
With the majority of the department off of work due to park closures and stay-at-home orders, the 
vehicle purchase did not occur.  At this time, it is not recommended to replace the vehicle due to 
department down-sizing related to the current economic environment.    

  
  



City of Lawndale 
Budget Update 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020    

 

 
14 

 

Proposition A – Local Transit Program, Fund 206 
 
Of the $527,180 Amended Budget for Proposition A funding, $107,065 was unexpended at fiscal year-end, 
primarily due to reduced/suspended contract services to operate the Lawndale Beat fixed-route 
transportation during state stay-at-home orders and reduce demand for services.   
 
Community Services Department, Fund 277 
 
Community Services Programs were dramatically impacted by COVID19.  Of the $314,779 Amended 
Budget for Operating costs, $87,424 was unexpended at fiscal year-end, primarily attributed to cancelled 
contract classes, community events, and summer day camp.  The related savings were seen in the expense 
accounts for contract services, community events, and recreation activities in the amounts of $30,970, 
$31,792, and $12,218, respectively.  All fees collected in advance for classes and facility rentals were 
refunded during the year leaving more of a structural deficit in the Community Services budget.  The 
operating transfer required from the General Fund to balance the Community Services budget increased 
$128,991, 13.4%, from the $965,775 budget to $1,094,766 for the fiscal year. 
 
Community Development, Fund 279 
 
Of the $1,188,680 Amended Budget for Community Development, $621,999 was unexpended at fiscal 
year-end, primarily due to the multi-year contract services approved for the General Plan, which requires 
$694,000 to be continued into Fiscal Year 2020-21 for contract payment upon completion.  In addition to 
the continued appropriations, building safety services and legal services exceeded the respective budget by 
$86,571 and $26,070.  The County of Los Angeles provides contract Building and Safety services to the 
City, which are recovered directly by user fees.  Revenue for building permit and plan check fees increased 
28%, $137,686 over-budgeted revenue, which approximates the 32% increase in contract services for the 
fiscal year.  Legal fees were budgeted in the General Fund, but since this is the first year Community 
Development was accounted for outside the General Fund, the budget did not get relocated to the 
department during the year.  Therefore, the $26,070 actual legal expense had no corresponding budget in 
the Community Development Enterprise Fund.  Below is a summary of citywide legal expenses incurred 
for the fiscal year, demonstrating there is no additional budget to transfer to Community Development at 
fiscal year-end: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Lawndale 
Budget Update 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020    

 

 
15 

 

Coronavirus Relief Fund, Fund 284 
 
The Coronavirus Relief Fund, Fund 284, was established in September 2020 to account for the City’s 
$405,000 Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act funding to ensure expenses are 
restricted to the program.  Since some of the eligible costs related to Fiscal Year 2019-20, these expenses 
were reclassified into the newly established fund.  A budget needs to be established to ensure legal authority 
exists for the charges.  A total of $146,009 was expensed and revenue recognized for Fiscal Year 2019-20 
($34,018 personnel costs and $111,991 operational costs).  The remaining $258,991 will be included in the 
first quarter 2020-21 budget update. 
  
Successor Agency Debt Service, Fund 305 
 
Although there appears to be a $1,619,064 debt service payment savings at the end of the fiscal year, this 
is not the case.  $1,632,707 of debt service payments were either posted directly against the outstanding 
debt liability (City Advances) or the expense was reclassified to reduce the outstanding debt (principal 
payment on the TABS 2009) as required by general accepted government accounting standards.  Since the 
Successor Agency is a Fiduciary fund type, which does not require a budget, the budgeted amounts are used 
to demonstrate all revenue is expended during the year and not available for other uses.  For comparative 
purposes, the expense and offsetting debt reduction amounts are compared to the budget below for Fiscal 
Year 2019-20: 
 

 
 
The budget variance includes one payment of $72,305, which was incorrectly budgeted as interest, and the 
bond discount is an annual amortization of bond costs paid over the life of the bond (it does not represent 
cash disbursed during the fiscal year). 
 
Capital Costs 

  



City of Lawndale 
Budget Update 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020    

 

 
16 

 

Capital projects are generally multiple years and any unexpended amounts are carried forward as continued 
appropriations into the next fiscal year.  However, some amounts were included in the Fiscal Year 2020-21 
budget without consideration of the balance outstanding at the end of the year.  Therefore, the unexpended 
balance at fiscal year-end is compared below to the amount included in Fiscal Year 2020-21 budget and the 
status of the project reviewed to determine a recommended appropriation amount for continuation into 
Fiscal Year 2020-21.  Since the Inglewood Avenue Corridor Widening Project Phase III was completed 
during Fiscal Year 2019-20, no balances will be carried into Fiscal Year 2020-21.  In addition, the LA 
Metro Proposition C25 Grant was amended 11/13/19 to reprogram $596,000 Inglewood Avenue Corridor 
Widening Project Phase I to be completed by March 2021, therefore, the budget was adjusted to reflect the 
amendment. 
 

 
 
Based on the unexpended capital project budget at June 30, the amount previously included in Fiscal Year 
2020-21 budget, the completion of Inglewood Avenue Corridor Widening Project Phase III, and the 
amendment to the Prop C25 Grant, below is the recommended budget adjustment for Fiscal Year 2020-21 
capital project expenditures: 
 

Increase appropriations: 
207-310-700.150 Prop C – Local Transit Inglewood Ave CW Phase II      $32,500 
207-310-700.151 Prop C – Local Transit Inglewood Ave CW Phase I    101,608 
214-438-700.146 CDBG Grevillea Ave Resurfacing Street Improvements     40,316 
214-439-700.146 CDBG Street Improvements        71,285 
271-310-700.264 STPL Metro Exchange Traffic Signal Marine/Osage     15,800 
274-310-700.264 SB1 Gas Tax RM&R Various Streets     134,127 
307-610-700.146 2009 TABS Street Improvements           2,999 
307-610-700.151 2009 TABS Inglewood Ave CW Phase I      266,346 
                      $664,981 
 
 



City of Lawndale 
Budget Update 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020    

 

 
17 

 

Decrease appropriations: 
240-310-700.151 Prop C25 Grant Inglewood Ave CW Phase I    $153,528 
240-310-700.263 Prop C25 Grant Inglewood Ave CW Phase III               1,198,044 
275-310-700.127 Measure R Traffic Signal Improvements               21 
                    $1,351,593 
 
Net Decrease in Capital Project Appropriations     $686,612 
 
Below is the recommended budget adjustment for Community Development and Measure A Park Projects 
unexpended appropriations at June 30, 2020 to be continued into Fiscal Year 2020-21 for non-capital 
project expenditures and related Measure A revenue: 
 

 

 

Increased appropriations: 
202-330-550.300 AQMD Street Maint Vehicles      $75,000.00 
   Air Quality Management District Subtotal    $75,000.00 
 
279-410-530.100 Community Dev Contract Srvs (General Plan)   $649,000.20 

Community Development Subtotal    $649,000.20 
 
281-510-580.200 Meas A Community-Based Cat 1    $184,309.44 
281-510-580.210 Meas A Neighborhood Parks Cat 2      136,768.01 
281-510-580.220 Meas A Maintenance & Servicing        44,560.93 

Measure A Subtotal      $365,638.38 
 
Increased estimated revenue:  
281-000-465.443 Measure A Revenue          $365,638.38 

Measure A Subtotal       $365,638.38 
 
 
BUDGET CLEAN-UP  
 
In the fiscal year-end close-out, accounting adjustments are required to properly account for revenue and 
expenditure.  Below are budget adjustments being recommend to City Council for approval to ensure 
proper expenditure authority is granted for transactions occurring after or near fiscal year-end. 
 
Establish Budget for SB1 Gas Tax Street Rehabilitation Salary and Benefit Costs Incurred  
 
Increased appropriations: 
274-310-501.100 SB1 PW Admin Salaries FT      $45,259 
274-310-501.400 SB1 PW Admin Salaries - OT             202 
274-310-505.100 SB1 PW Admin Flexible Benefit         6,632 
274-310-505.200 SB1 PW Admin Retirement          3,137 
274-310-505.300 SB1 PW Admin Medicare             705 
274-310-505.700 SB1 PW Admin City Paid Insurance            181 
   SB1 Gas Tax Street Rehabilitation Total    $56,116 
 
 



City of Lawndale 
Budget Update 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020    

 

 
18 

 

Establish Budget for Measure R Grant Traffic Signal Salary and Benefit Costs Incurred  
 
Increased appropriations: 
275-310-501.100 Meas R Grant PW Admin Salaries FT     $12,791 
275-310-505.100 Meas R Grant PW Admin Flexible Benefit        1,507 
275-310-505.200 Meas R Grant PW Admin Retirement         1,293 
275-310-505.300 Meas R Grant PW Admin Medicare            181 
275-310-505.700 Meas R Grant PW Admin City Paid Insurance             43 
   Measure R Grant Traffic Signal Total     $15,816 
 
Establish Budget for Coronavirus Relief Fund CARES Act Funding and Costs Subject to Reimbursement  
 
Increased appropriations: 
284-120-530.300 CVRF City Attorney Legal Services     $47,539 
284-140-501.100 CVRF City Manager Salaries FT              72 
284-140-501.900 CVRF City Manager Mandatory Leave         2,679 
284-140-580.150 CVRF City Manager COVID19 Expense             32 
284-150-580.150 CVRF Admin Srvs COVID19 Expense            894 
284-210-530.700 CVRF County Sheriff Services        59,500 
284-300-501.100 CVRF MSD Salaries FT          2,560 
284-300-501.900 CVRF MSD Mandatory Leave         26,237 
284-300-580.150 CVRF MSD COVID19 Expense              66 
284-320-580.150 CVRF Grounds Maint COVID19 Expense        3,960 
284-510-501.900 CVRF Community Srvs Mandatory Leave        2,470        
   Coronavirus Relief Fund Total   $146,009 
 
Increase estimated revenue: 
284-000-465.850 CVRF Coronavirus Relief Allocation   $146,009 
   Coronavirus Relief Fund Total   $146,009 
 
Transfer Budget from General Fund to Dept of Conservation Grant for Recycling Program 
 
Increased appropriations: 
227-310-540.500 Dept of Cons Grant PW Recycling Program  $8,600 
   Department of Conservation Grant Total  $8,600 
 
Decreased appropriations: 
100-310-540.500 GF PW Admin Recycling Program   $8,600 
   General Fund Total     $8,600 
 
Increase Budget for Final Relocation Fee Payments Incurred from 2009 TABS Fund 
 
Increased appropriations: 
307-610-700.221 2009 TABS Closure of Mobile Home Park  $36,438 
   2009 Tax Allocation Bonds Total   $36,438 
 
Increase operating transfer in: 
277-000-480.100 Community Srvs Operating Transfer In   $129,109 
 



City of Lawndale 
Budget Update 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020    

 

 
19 

 

Increase operating transfer out: 
100-100-560.100 GF Operating Transfer Out   $129,108 
 



12



13


	20-10-19 reg.agn
	01. Senator Bradford 2020 Legislative Accomplishments
	02. Reading of Ordinances
	03. Case No. 20-27 amendment title 17 LMC
	04. Continue Emergency Conditions, Community Center
	05. Claim against the City
	06. Investment Report quarter Sept 30, 2020
	07. Warrants
	08. 20-10-05 reg.min
	09. Regional Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA)Allocation Appeal
	10. Award Construction Contract to Sequel Contractors Inc., for the Fiscal Year
	11. Budget Review FYE 6_30_20 Report
	12. Council Meetings Cancellation
	13. Councilmember attendance

	Button1: 


